

28

1 a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and that is related to paternity or
2 child support proceedings or the permit holder is delinquent in making
3 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,
4 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,
5 as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s. 49.857. A
6 permit holder whose permit is restricted or suspended under this subdivision is
7 entitled to a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other
8 hearing under this section.

9 **SECTION 2920.** 175.35 (2i) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 175.35 (2i) The department shall charge a firearms dealer ~~an \$8~~ a \$30 fee for
11 each firearms restrictions record search that the firearms dealer requests under sub.
12 (2) (c). The firearms dealer may collect the fee from the transferee. The department
13 may refuse to conduct firearms restrictions record searches for any firearms dealer
14 who fails to pay any fee under this subsection within 30 days after billing by the
15 department.

16 **SECTION 2921.** 175.40 (6m) (c) 4. of the statutes is created to read:

17 175.40 (6m) (c) 4. By no later than 30 days after the end of each calender
18 quarter, the department of administration shall submit a report to the joint
19 committee on finance detailing all moneys expended or encumbered from the
20 appropriation account under s. 20.505 (2) (am) during that calendar quarter for costs
21 and judgments under subd. 1. or 2.

22 **SECTION 2922.** 177.265 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 177.265 (1) (intro.) At least quarterly, the department of workforce
24 development children and families shall reimburse the administrator, based on
25 information provided by the administrator, for all of the following:

1 **SECTION 2923.** 185.981 (4t) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 185.981 (4t) A sickness care plan operated by a cooperative association is
3 subject to ss. 252.14, 631.17, 631.89, 631.95, 632.72 (2), 632.745 to 632.749, 632.85,
4 632.853, 632.855, 632.87 (2m), (3), (4), (5), and (6), 632.895 (10) to ~~(14)~~ (15), and
5 632.897 (10) and chs. 149 and 155.

6 **SECTION 2924.** 185.983 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 185.983 (1) (intro.) Every such voluntary nonprofit sickness care plan shall be
8 exempt from chs. 600 to 646, with the exception of ss. 601.04, 601.13, 601.31, 601.41,
9 601.42, 601.43, 601.44, 601.45, 611.67, 619.04, 628.34 (10), 631.17, 631.89, 631.93,
10 631.95, 632.72 (2), 632.745 to 632.749, 632.775, 632.79, 632.795, 632.85, 632.853,
11 632.855, 632.87 (2m), (3), (4), (5), and (6), 632.895 (5) and (9) to ~~(14)~~ (15), 632.896, and
12 632.897 (10) and chs. 609, 630, 635, 645, and 646, but the sponsoring association
13 shall:

14 **SECTION 2925.** 194.23 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 194.23 (1) No person may operate any motor vehicle as a common motor carrier
16 unless the person first obtains a certificate and, if required under this chapter, a
17 permit issued by the department, or unless the person is registered by another state
18 under a single-state or unified carrier registration system consistent with the
19 standards under, respectively, 49 USC 14504 or 49 USC 13908 and 14504a, for the
20 operation of the vehicle, except that no permit is required for the operation of a
21 semitrailer. The department may issue or refuse to issue any certificate. The
22 department may attach to the exercise of the privilege granted by a certificate any
23 terms or conditions which are permitted under this chapter.

24 **SECTION 2926.** 194.34 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 194.34(1) No person may operate any motor vehicle as a contract motor carrier
2 unless the person first obtains a license and, if required under this chapter, a permit
3 issued by the department, or unless the person is registered by another state under
4 a single-state or unified carrier registration system consistent with the standards
5 under, respectively, 49 USC 14504 or 49 USC 13908 and 14504a, for the operation
6 of the motor vehicle, except that no permit is required for the operation of a
7 semitrailer. The department may refuse to issue any license or may attach to the
8 exercise of the privilege granted by a license any terms or conditions which are
9 permitted under this chapter.

10 **SECTION 2927.** 194.407 of the statutes is created to read:

11 **194.407 Unified carrier registration system.** (1) The department may
12 participate in and do all things necessary to implement and administer a unified
13 carrier registration system for motor carriers, including private motor carriers, in
14 accordance with 49 USC 13908 and 14504a. The department may, consistent with
15 federal law, establish by rule an annual fee under this section for a motor vehicle that
16 is operated in this state and that is subject to the unified carrier registration system.

17 (2) The department may not administer both an insurance registration system
18 for motor carriers under s. 194.405 and a registration system for motor carriers
19 under this section.

20 **SECTION 2928.** 194.41 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 194.41 (1) No permit or vehicle registration may be issued to a common motor
22 carrier of property, contract motor carrier, or rental company, no permit or vehicle
23 registration may remain in force to operate any motor vehicle under the authority
24 of this chapter, and no vehicle registration may be issued or remain in force for a
25 semitrailer unless the carrier or rental company has on file with the department and

1 in effect an approved certificate for a policy of insurance or other written contract in
2 such form and containing such terms and conditions as may be approved by the
3 department issued by an insurer authorized to do a surety or automobile liability
4 business in this state under which the insurer assumes the liability prescribed by
5 this section with respect to the operation of such motor vehicles. The certificate or
6 other contract is subject to the approval of the department and shall provide that the
7 insurer shall be directly liable for and shall pay all damages for injuries to or for the
8 death of persons or for injuries to or destruction of property that may be recovered
9 against the owner or operator of any such motor vehicles by reason of the negligent
10 operation thereof in such amount as the department may require. Liability may be
11 restricted so as to be inapplicable to damage claims on account of injury to or
12 destruction of property transported, but the department may require, and with
13 respect to a carrier transporting a building, as defined in s. 348.27 (12m) (a) 1., shall
14 require, a certificate or other contract protecting the owner of the property
15 transported by carriers from loss or damage in the amount and under the conditions
16 as the department may require. No permit or vehicle registration may be issued to
17 a common motor carrier of passengers by any motor vehicle, or other carrier of
18 passengers by motor bus, except those registered in accordance with s. 341.26 (2) (a)
19 and (d), and no permit or vehicle registration may remain in force to operate any
20 motor vehicle unless it has on file with the department a like certificate or other
21 contract in the form and containing the terms and conditions as may be approved by
22 the department for the payment of damages for injuries to property and injuries to
23 or for the death of persons, including passengers, in the amounts as the department
24 may require. This subsection does not apply to a motor carrier that is registered by

1 another state under a single-state or unified carrier registration system consistent
2 with the standards under, respectively, 49 USC 14504 or 49 USC 13908 and 14504a.

3 **SECTION 2929.** 196.218 (3) (a) 3. a. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 196.218 (3) (a) 3. a. The amount appropriated under s. 20.155 (1) (q), except
5 that in fiscal year 2003-04 the total amount of contributions in that fiscal year under
6 this subd. 3. a. may not exceed \$5,000,000 and except that beginning in fiscal year
7 2004-05 the total amount of contributions in a fiscal year under this subd. 3. a. may
8 not exceed \$6,000,000.

9 **SECTION 2930.** 196.218 (5) (a) 7. of the statutes is repealed.

10 **SECTION 2931.** 196.218 (5) (d) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

11 196.218 (5) (d) 2. The commission shall annually provide information booklets
12 to all Wisconsin ~~works~~ Works agencies that describe the current assistance from the
13 universal service fund that is available to low-income individuals who are served by
14 the Wisconsin ~~works~~ Works agencies, including a description of how such individuals
15 may obtain such assistance. The department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
16 families shall assist the commission in identifying the Wisconsin ~~works~~ Works
17 agencies to which the commission is required to submit the information required
18 under this subdivision.

19 **SECTION 2932.** 196.374 (3) (b) 2. (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by 2005
20 Wisconsin Act 141, is amended to read:

21 196.374 (3) (b) 2. (intro.) The commission shall require each energy utility to
22 spend 1.2 percent of its annual operating revenues to fund the utility's programs
23 under sub. (2) (b) 1., the utility's ordered programs, and the utility's share of the
24 statewide energy efficiency and renewable resource programs under sub. (2) (a) 1.,
25 and the utility's share, as determined by the commission under sub. (3) (b) 4., of the

1 costs incurred by the commission in administering this section. Subject to approval
2 under subd. 3., the commission may require each energy utility to spend a larger
3 percentage of its annual operating revenues to fund these programs and costs. The
4 commission may make such a requirement based on the commission's consideration
5 of all of the following:

6 **SECTION 2933.** 196.374 (3) (b) 4. of the statutes is created to read:

7 196.374 (3) (b) 4. In each fiscal year, the commission shall collect from the
8 persons with whom energy utilities contract under sub. (2) (a) 1. an amount equal
9 to the costs incurred by the commission in administering this section.

10 **SECTION 2934.** 200.47 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 200.47 (2) (a) Except for a contract awarded under par. (f) and except as
12 provided in par. (b), all work done and all purchases of supplies and materials by the
13 commission shall be by contract awarded to the lowest responsible bidder complying
14 with the invitation to bid, if the work or purchase involves an expenditure of \$20,000
15 or more. If the commission decides to proceed with construction of any sewer after
16 plans and specifications for the sewer are completed and approved by the commission
17 and by the department of natural resources under ch. 281, the commission shall
18 advertise by a class 2 notice under ch. 985 for construction bids. All contracts and
19 the awarding of contracts are subject to s. 66.0901.

20 **SECTION 2935.** 200.47 (2) (f) of the statutes is created to read:

21 200.47 (2) (f) 1. In this paragraph, "design-build construction process" means
22 a project delivery and procurement process for the design, construction, repair,
23 renovation, installation, or demolition of a public works project under which a single
24 entity is responsible for the professional design services and construction services
25 related to the project.

1 2. The commission may let only one contract under sub. (1) that uses the
2 design-build construction process, and that contract may be let only for a deep
3 tunnel pump station.

4 3. A contract that is let under sub. (1) and that uses the design-build
5 construction process under subd. 2. does not need to comply with s. 200.49, although
6 the commission shall make an effort to ensure that the goal described in s. 200.49 (3)
7 (a) is met and that the good faith effort described in s. 200.49 (3) (b) is made.

8 **SECTION 2936.** 217.05 (1m) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

9 217.05 (1m) (b) 2. The division may disclose information under par. (a) 1. to the
10 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance with a
11 memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

12 **SECTION 2937.** 217.05 (1m) (c) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

13 217.05 (1m) (c) 1. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
14 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
15 a license, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to
16 the division that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of
17 the statement shall be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~
18 children and families.

19 **SECTION 2938.** 217.06 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 217.06 (6) If the applicant is an individual, the applicant has not failed to
21 comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the
22 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
23 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
24 proceedings and is not delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or
25 family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses

1 related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of
2 understanding entered into under s. 49.857.

3 **SECTION 2939.** 217.09 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 217.09 (1m) The division shall restrict or suspend any license issued under this
5 chapter to an individual, if the individual fails to comply, after appropriate notice,
6 with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~
7 children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related
8 to paternity or child support proceedings or is delinquent in making court-ordered
9 payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses
10 or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in
11 a memorandum of understanding entered into under s. 49.857. A licensee whose
12 license is restricted or suspended under this subsection is entitled to a notice and
13 hearing only as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.
14 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or hearing under this chapter.

15 **SECTION 2940.** 218.0114 (20) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 218.0114 (20) (c) An applicant or licensee furnishing information under par. (a)
17 may designate the information as a trade secret, as defined in s. 134.90 (1) (c), or as
18 confidential business information. The licensor shall notify the applicant or licensee
19 providing the information 15 days before any information designated as a trade
20 secret or as confidential business information is disclosed to the legislature, a state
21 agency, as defined in s. 13.62 (2), a local governmental unit, as defined in s. 605.01
22 (1), or any other person. The applicant or licensee furnishing the information may
23 seek a court order limiting or prohibiting the disclosure, in which case the court shall
24 weigh the need for confidentiality of the information against the public interest in
25 the disclosure. A designation under this paragraph does not prohibit the disclosure

1 of a person's name or address, of the name or address of a person's employer or of
2 financial information that relates to a person when requested under s. 49.22 (2m) by
3 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
4 support agency under s. 59.53 (5).

5 **SECTION 2941.** 218.0114 (21e) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 218.0114 (21e) (a) In addition to any other information required under this
7 section and except as provided in par. (c), an application by an individual for the
8 issuance or renewal of a license described in sub. (14) shall include the individual's
9 social security number and an application by a person who is not an individual for
10 the issuance or renewal of a license described in sub. (14) (a), (b), (c) or (e) shall
11 include the person's federal employer identification number. The licensor may not
12 disclose any information received under this paragraph to any person except the
13 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for purposes of
14 administering s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of
15 requesting certifications under s. 73.0301.

16 **SECTION 2942.** 218.0114 (21e) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 218.0114 (21e) (c) If an applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license
18 described in sub. (14) is an individual who does not have a social security number,
19 the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew the license, shall
20 submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the licensor that
21 the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of the statement shall
22 be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.
23 Any license issued or renewed in reliance upon a false statement submitted by an
24 applicant under this paragraph is invalid.

25 **SECTION 2943.** 218.0114 (21g) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

SECTION 2943

1 218.0114 (21g) (b) 2. The licensor may disclose information under par. (a) 1. to
2 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance with
3 a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

4 **SECTION 2944.** 218.0114 (21g) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 218.0114 (21g) (c) If an applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license
6 described in sub. (16) is an individual who does not have a social security number,
7 the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew the license, shall
8 submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the licensor that
9 the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of the statement shall
10 be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.
11 Any license issued or renewed in reliance upon a false statement submitted by an
12 applicant under this paragraph is invalid.

13 **SECTION 2945.** 218.0116 (1g) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 218.0116 (1g) (a) A license described in s. 218.0114 (14) shall be denied,
15 restricted, limited or suspended if the applicant or licensee is an individual who fails
16 to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the
17 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
18 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
19 proceedings or who is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or
20 family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses
21 related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of
22 understanding entered into under s. 49.857.

23 **SECTION 2946.** 218.0116 (1m) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

24 218.0116 (1m) (a) 3. The applicant is an individual who fails to comply, after
25 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of

1 workforce development children and families or a county child support agency under
2 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent
3 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
4 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
5 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under
6 s. 49.857. An applicant whose application is denied under this subdivision is entitled
7 to a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other notice or
8 hearing under ss. 218.0101 to 218.0163.

9 **SECTION 2947.** 218.0116 (1m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 218.0116 (1m) (b) A license described in s. 218.0114 (16) shall be restricted or
11 suspended if the licensee is an individual who fails to comply, after appropriate
12 notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of workforce
13 development children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53
14 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent in
15 making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
16 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
17 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under
18 s. 49.857. A licensee whose license is restricted or suspended under this paragraph
19 is entitled to a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other
20 notice or hearing under ss. 218.0101 to 218.0163.

21 **SECTION 2948.** 218.0171 (2) (cq) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 218.0171 (2) (cq) Upon payment of a refund to a consumer under par. (b) 2. b.,
23 the manufacturer shall provide to the consumer a written statement that specifies
24 the trade-in amount previously applied under s. 77.51 (4) (b) 3. ~~or 3m. or (15) (b) 4.~~
25 ~~or 4m. (12m) (b) 5. or 6. or (15b) (b) 5. or 6.~~ toward the sales price of the motor vehicle

SECTION 2948

1 having the nonconformity and the date on which the manufacturer provided the
2 refund.

3 **SECTION 2949.** 218.0171 (2) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 218.0171 (2) (e) The department of revenue shall refund to the manufacturer
5 any sales tax which the manufacturer refunded to the consumer under par. (b) if the
6 manufacturer provides to the department of revenue a written request for a refund
7 within 4 years of the date the manufacturer issued the refund to the consumer along
8 with evidence that the sales tax was paid when the motor vehicle was purchased and
9 that the manufacturer refunded the sales tax to the consumer. The department may
10 not refund any sales tax under this paragraph if it has made a refund in connection
11 with the same motor vehicle under par. (f). Taxes refunded to the manufacturer
12 under this paragraph shall bear interest at 9 percent per year from the date the
13 manufacturer refunded the tax to the consumer to the date on which the refund is
14 certified on the refund rolls.

15 **SECTION 2950.** 218.0171 (2) (f) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 218.0171 (2) (f) (intro.) The department of revenue shall refund to a consumer
17 described under sub. (1) (b) 1., 2. or 3. all or part of the sales tax paid by the consumer
18 on the purchase of a new motor vehicle, based on the amount of the refund of the
19 purchase price of the motor vehicle actually received by the consumer, plus interest
20 at 9 percent per year on the amount refunded by the manufacturer from the date of
21 the manufacturer's refund of the purchase price of the vehicle to the date on which
22 the refund is certified on the refund rolls, if all of the following apply:

23 **SECTION 2951.** 218.0171 (2) (f) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

24 218.0171 (2) (f) 3. The consumer provides the department of revenue with a
25 written request for a refund of the sales tax within 4 years of the date the

1 manufacturer issued the refund to the consumer, along with evidence that the
2 consumer received a certain amount as a refund of the purchase price of the motor
3 vehicle from the manufacturer, that the sales tax was paid when the motor vehicle
4 was bought new, and that the manufacturer did not refund the sales tax to the
5 consumer.

6 **SECTION 2952.** 218.02 (2) (a) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

7 218.02 (2) (a) 2. b. The division may disclose information under subd. 1. a. to
8 the department of workforce development children and families in accordance with
9 a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

10 **SECTION 2953.** 218.02 (2) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

11 218.02 (2) (a) 3. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
12 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
13 a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath
14 or affirmation to the division that the applicant does not have a social security
15 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
16 workforce development children and families. Any license issued or renewed in
17 reliance upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is
18 invalid.

19 **SECTION 2954.** 218.02 (3) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 218.02 (3) (e) That, if the applicant is an individual, the applicant has not failed
21 to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the
22 department of workforce development children and families or a county child
23 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
24 proceedings and is not delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or
25 family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses

1 related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of
2 understanding entered into under s. 49.857.

3 **SECTION 2955.** 218.02 (6) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 218.02 (6) (b) In accordance with a memorandum of understanding entered
5 into under s. 49.857, the division shall restrict or suspend a license if the licensee is
6 an individual who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or
7 warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
8 or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child
9 support proceedings or who is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child
10 or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses
11 related to the support of a child or former spouse.

12 **SECTION 2956.** 218.02 (9) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

13 218.02 (9) (a) 2. Applications for licenses that are denied or licenses that are
14 restricted or suspended because the applicant or licensee has failed to comply, after
15 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
16 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
17 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or is delinquent in
18 making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
19 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
20 former spouse.

21 **SECTION 2957.** 218.04 (3) (a) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

22 218.04 (3) (a) 2. b. The division may disclose information under subd. 1. a. to
23 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance with
24 a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

25 **SECTION 2958.** 218.04 (3) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

1 218.04 (3) (a) 3. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
2 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
3 a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath
4 or affirmation to the division that the applicant does not have a social security
5 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
6 ~~workforce development~~ children and families. Any license issued or renewed in
7 reliance upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is
8 invalid.

9 **SECTION 2959.** 218.04 (4) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

10 218.04 (4) (am) 3. The applicant fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with
11 a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children
12 and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to
13 paternity or child support proceedings or is delinquent in making court-ordered
14 payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses
15 or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in
16 a memorandum of understanding entered into under s. 49.857. An applicant whose
17 application is denied under this subdivision for delinquent payments is entitled to
18 a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other notice or hearing
19 under this section.

20 **SECTION 2960.** 218.04 (5) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 218.04 (5) (am) The division shall restrict or suspend a license issued under
22 this section if the division finds that the licensee is an individual who fails to comply,
23 after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
24 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
25 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent

SECTION 2960

1 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
2 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
3 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under
4 s. 49.857. A licensee whose license is restricted or suspended under this paragraph
5 is entitled to a notice and hearing only as provided in a memorandum of
6 understanding entered into under s. 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or
7 hearing under this section.

8 **SECTION 2961.** 218.05 (3) (am) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

9 218.05 (3) (am) 2. b. The division may disclose information under subd. 1. a.
10 to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance
11 with a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

12 **SECTION 2962.** 218.05 (3) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

13 218.05 (3) (am) 3. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
14 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
15 a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath
16 or affirmation to the division that the applicant does not have a social security
17 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
18 ~~workforce development~~ children and families. Any license issued or renewed in
19 reliance upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is
20 invalid.

21 **SECTION 2963.** 218.05 (4) (c) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

22 218.05 (4) (c) 3. The applicant is an individual who fails to comply, after
23 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
24 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
25 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent

1 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
2 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
3 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under
4 s. 49.857. An applicant whose application is denied under this subdivision for
5 delinquent payments is entitled to a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not
6 entitled to any notice or hearing under par. (b).

7 **SECTION 2964.** 218.05 (11) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 218.05 (11) (c) The renewal applicant is an individual who fails to comply, after
9 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
10 workforce development children and families or a county child support agency under
11 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or is delinquent in
12 making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
13 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
14 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under
15 s. 49.857. An applicant whose application is denied under this subsection for
16 delinquent payments or failure to comply with a subpoena or warrant is entitled to
17 a notice and hearing only as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered
18 into under s. 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or hearing under this
19 section.

20 **SECTION 2965.** 218.05 (12) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 218.05 (12) (am) The division shall restrict or suspend any license issued under
22 this section if the licensee is an individual who fails to comply, after appropriate
23 notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of workforce
24 development children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53
25 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent in

SECTION 2965

1 making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
2 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
3 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under
4 s. 49.857. A licensee whose license is restricted or suspended under this paragraph
5 is entitled to a notice and hearing only as provided in a memorandum of
6 understanding entered into under s. 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or
7 hearing under this section.

8 **SECTION 2966.** 218.11 (2) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

9 218.11 (2) (am) 3. The department of commerce may not disclose any
10 information received under subd. 1. to any person except to the department of
11 ~~workforce development~~ children and families for purposes of administering s. 49.22
12 or to the department of revenue for the sole purpose of requesting certifications
13 under s. 73.0301.

14 **SECTION 2967.** 218.11 (2) (am) 4. of the statutes is amended to read:

15 218.11 (2) (am) 4. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
16 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
17 a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath
18 or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social security
19 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
20 ~~workforce development~~ children and families. Any license issued or renewed in
21 reliance upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is
22 invalid.

23 **SECTION 2968.** 218.11 (6m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 218.11 (6m) (a) A license under this section shall be denied, restricted, limited
25 or suspended if an applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making

1 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,
2 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,
3 or who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued
4 by the department of workforce development children and families or a county child
5 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
6 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.
7 49.857.

8 **SECTION 2969.** 218.12 (2) (am) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

9 218.12 (2) (am) 2. The department of commerce may not disclose a social
10 security number obtained under par. (a) to any person except to the department of
11 workforce development children and families for the sole purpose of administering
12 s. 49.22 or to the department of revenue for the sole purpose of requesting
13 certifications under s. 73.0301.

14 **SECTION 2970.** 218.12 (2) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

15 218.12 (2) (am) 3. If an applicant does not have a social security number, the
16 applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew a license under this
17 section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to
18 the department that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form
19 of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of workforce development
20 children and families. Any license issued or renewed in reliance upon a false
21 statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is invalid.

22 **SECTION 2971.** 218.12 (3m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 218.12 (3m) (a) A license shall be denied, restricted, limited or suspended if the
24 applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making court-ordered
25 payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses

SECTION 2971

1 or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse, or who fails to
2 comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the
3 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
4 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
5 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.
6 49.857.

7 **SECTION 2972.** 218.21 (2f) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 218.21 (2f) (a) If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
9 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
10 a motor vehicle salvage dealer's license, shall submit a statement made or subscribed
11 under oath or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social
12 security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department
13 of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

14 **SECTION 2973.** 218.21 (2m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 218.21 (2m) (b) The department of transportation may not disclose any
16 information received under sub. (2) (ag) or (am) to any person except to the
17 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for purposes of
18 administering s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of
19 requesting certifications under s. 73.0301.

20 **SECTION 2974.** 218.22 (3m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 218.22 (3m) (a) The department shall deny, restrict, limit or suspend a license
22 if the applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making
23 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,
24 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,
25 or who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued

1 by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
2 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
3 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.
4 49.857.

5 **SECTION 2975.** 218.31 (1f) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 218.31 (1f) (a) If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
7 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
8 a motor vehicle auction dealer's license, shall submit a statement made or subscribed
9 under oath or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social
10 security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department
11 of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

12 **SECTION 2976.** 218.31 (1m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 218.31 (1m) (b) The department of transportation may not disclose any
14 information received under sub. (1) (ag) or (am) to any person except to the
15 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for purposes of
16 administering s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of
17 requesting certifications under s. 73.0301.

18 **SECTION 2977.** 218.32 (3m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 218.32 (3m) (a) The department shall deny, restrict, limit or suspend a license
20 if the applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making
21 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,
22 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,
23 or who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued
24 by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
25 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support

1 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.
2 49.857.

3 **SECTION 2978.** 218.41 (2) (am) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 218.41 (2) (am) 2. The department of transportation may not disclose any
5 information received under subd. 1. a. or b. to any person except to the department
6 of workforce development children and families for the sole purpose of administering
7 s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of requesting certifications
8 under s. 73.0301.

9 **SECTION 2979.** 218.41 (2) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

10 218.41 (2) (am) 3. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
11 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
12 a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath
13 or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social security
14 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
15 workforce development children and families. Any license issued or renewed in
16 reliance upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is
17 invalid.

18 **SECTION 2980.** 218.41 (3m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 218.41 (3m) (a) A license shall be denied, restricted, limited or suspended if the
20 applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making court-ordered
21 payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses
22 or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse, or who fails to
23 comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the
24 department of workforce development children and families or a county child
25 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support

1 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.
2 49.857.

3 **SECTION 2981.** 218.51 (3) (am) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 218.51 (3) (am) 2. The department of transportation may not disclose any
5 information received under subd. 1. a. or b. to any person except to the department
6 of workforce development children and families for the sole purpose of administering
7 s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of requesting certifications
8 under s. 73.0301.

9 **SECTION 2982.** 218.51 (3) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

10 218.51 (3) (am) 3. If an applicant for the issuance or renewal of a buyer
11 identification card is an individual who does not have a social security number, the
12 applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew the buyer identification
13 card, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the
14 department that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of
15 the statement shall be prescribed by the department of workforce development
16 children and families. Any buyer identification card issued or renewed in reliance
17 upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is invalid.

18 **SECTION 2983.** 218.51 (4m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 218.51 (4m) (a) The department shall deny, restrict, limit or suspend a license
20 if the applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making
21 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,
22 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,
23 or who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued
24 by the department of workforce development children and families or a county child
25 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support

1 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.
2 49.857.

3 **SECTION 2984.** 221.0903 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 221.0903 (4) (b) *Contracts for examination services.* The division may enter
5 into contracts with any bank supervisory agency with concurrent jurisdiction over
6 a state bank or an in-state branch of an out-of-state state bank to engage the
7 services of the agency's examiners at a reasonable rate of compensation, or to provide
8 the services of the division's examiners to the agency at a reasonable rate of
9 compensation. Contracts entered into under this paragraph are exempt from ss.
10 16.70 to 16.752, 16.754 to 16.76, and 16.767 to 16.77, and 16.78 to 16.82.

11 **SECTION 2985.** 224.40 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 224.40 (2) FINANCIAL RECORD MATCHING AGREEMENTS. A financial institution is
13 required to enter into an agreement with the department of ~~workforce development~~
14 children and families in accordance with rules promulgated under s. 49.853 (2).

15 **SECTION 2986.** 224.40 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 224.40 (3) (b) Disclosing information to the department of ~~workforce~~
17 ~~development~~ children and families or a county child support agency pursuant to the
18 financial record matching program under s. 49.853.

19 **SECTION 2987.** 224.40 (3) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 224.40 (3) (c) Encumbering or surrendering any assets held by the financial
21 institution in response to instructions provided by the department of ~~workforce~~
22 ~~development~~ children and families or a county child support agency for the purpose
23 of enforcing a child support obligation.

24 **SECTION 2988.** 224.72 (2) (c) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

1 224.72 (2) (c) 2. b. The department may disclose information under subd. 1. a.
2 to the department of workforce development children and families in accordance
3 with a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

4 **SECTION 2989.** 224.72 (2) (d) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

5 224.72 (2) (d) 1. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
6 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
7 a registration under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under
8 oath or affirmation to the division that the applicant does not have a social security
9 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
10 workforce development children and families.

11 **SECTION 2990.** 224.72 (7m) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 224.72 (7m) (c) The applicant for the issuance or renewal is an individual who
13 fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the
14 department of workforce development children and families or a county child
15 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
16 proceedings or who is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or
17 family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses
18 related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of
19 understanding entered into under s. 49.857. An applicant whose registration is not
20 issued or renewed under this paragraph for delinquent payments is entitled to a
21 notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other notice or hearing
22 under this section.

23 **SECTION 2991.** 224.77 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 224.77 (6) RESTRICTION OR SUSPENSION OF REGISTRATION. The department shall
25 restrict or suspend the registration of a mortgage banker, loan originator or

1 mortgage broker if the registrant is an individual who fails to comply, after
2 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
3 workforce development children and families or a county child support agency under
4 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent
5 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
6 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
7 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under
8 s. 49.857. A registrant whose registration is restricted or suspended under this
9 subsection is entitled to a notice and hearing only as provided in a memorandum of
10 understanding entered into under s. 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or
11 hearing under this section.

12 **SECTION 2992.** 224.927 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 224.927 (2) The division may disclose the information to the department of
14 workforce development children and families in accordance with a memorandum of
15 understanding under s. 49.857.

16 **SECTION 2993.** 224.95 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 224.95 (1) (c) The applicant is an individual who has failed to comply, after
18 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
19 workforce development children and families or a county child support agency under
20 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent
21 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
22 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
23 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under
24 s. 49.857. An applicant whose application for issuance or renewal of a license is

1 denied under this paragraph is entitled to a notice and a hearing under s. 49.857 but
2 is not entitled to a notice or hearing under sub. (4).

3 **SECTION 2994.** 227.01 (13) (im) of the statutes is created to read:

4 **227.01 (13) (im)** Relates to the real work, real pay pilot project under s. 49.147
5 (3m).

6 **SECTION 2995.** 227.01 (13) (sm) of the statutes is repealed.

7 **SECTION 2996.** 227.01 (13) (um) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 **227.01 (13) (um)** Lists over-the-counter drugs covered by medical assistance
9 Medical Assistance under s. 49.46 (2) (b) 6. i. or 49.471 (11) (a).

10 **SECTION 2997.** 227.01 (13) (zx) of the statutes is created to read:

11 **227.01 (13) (zx)** Determines a fee under s. 440.03 (9) for an initial credential
12 for which no examination is required, for a reciprocal credential, or for a credential
13 renewal.

14 **SECTION 2998.** 227.43 (1) (by) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 **227.43 (1) (by)** Assign a hearing examiner to preside over any hearing of a
16 contested case that is required to be conducted by the department of workforce
17 development children and families under ch. 48 or subch. III of ch. 49 and that is not
18 conducted by the secretary of workforce development children and families.

19 **SECTION 2999.** 227.43 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 **227.43 (2) (d)** The department of workforce development children and families
21 shall notify the division of hearings and appeals of every pending hearing to which
22 the administrator of the division is required to assign a hearing examiner under sub.
23 (1) (by) after the department of workforce development children and families is
24 notified that a hearing on the matter is required.

25 **SECTION 3000.** 227.43 (3) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

SECTION 3000

1 227.43 (3) (d) The administrator of the division of hearings and appeals may
2 set the fees to be charged for any services rendered to the department of workforce
3 development children and families by a hearing examiner under this section in a
4 manner consistent with a federally approved allocation methodology. The fees shall
5 cover the total cost of the services.

6 **SECTION 3001.** 227.43 (4) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 227.43 (4) (d) The department of workforce development children and families
8 shall pay all costs of the services of a hearing examiner, including support services,
9 assigned under sub. (1) (by), according to the fees set under sub. (3) (d).

10 **SECTION 3002.** 227.54 of the statutes is amended to read:

11 **227.54 Stay of proceedings.** The institution of the proceeding for review
12 shall not stay enforcement of the agency decision. The reviewing court may order a
13 stay upon such terms as it deems proper, except as otherwise provided in ss. 49.17
14 (7), 196.43, 253.06 ~~(7)~~, 448.02 (9), and 551.62.

15 **SECTION 3003.** 230.01 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 230.01 (3) Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to either infringe upon
17 or supersede the rights guaranteed state employees under subch. V or VI of ch. 111.

18 **SECTION 3004.** 230.03 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 230.03 (3) "Agency" means any board, commission, committee, council, or
20 department in state government or a unit thereof created by the constitution or
21 statutes if such board, commission, committee, council, department, unit, or the
22 head thereof, is authorized to appoint subordinate staff by the constitution or
23 statute, except a legislative or judicial board, commission, committee, council,
24 department, or unit thereof or an authority created under subch. II of ch. 114 or
25 subch. III of ch. 149 or under ch. 231, 232, 233, 234, 235, ~~or 237~~, or 238. "Agency" does

1 not mean any local unit of government or body within one or more local units of
2 government that is created by law or by action of one or more local units of
3 government.

4 **SECTION 3005.** 230.046 (10) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 230.046 (10) (a) Conduct off-the-job employee development and training
6 programs relating to functions under this chapter or subch. V or VI of ch. 111.

7 **SECTION 3006.** 230.08 (2) (e) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

8 230.08 (2) (e) 1. Administration — ~~13~~ 15.

9 **SECTION 3007.** 230.08 (2) (e) 2m. of the statutes is created to read:

10 230.08 (2) (e) 2m. Children and families — 5.

11 **SECTION 3008.** 230.08 (2) (e) 6. of the statutes is amended to read:

12 230.08 (2) (e) 6. Workforce development — ~~7~~ 6.

13 **SECTION 3009.** 230.08 (2) (eg) of the statutes is created to read:

14 230.08 (2) (eg) A general counsel position in each of the following agencies:

15 1. Department of administration.

16 2. Department of agriculture, trade and consumer protection.

17 2m. Department of children and families.

18 3. Department of commerce.

19 4. Department of corrections.

20 5. Department of financial institutions.

21 6. Department of health and family services.

22 7. Department of natural resources.

23 8. Department of regulation and licensing.

24 9. Department of revenue.

25 10. Department of transportation.

SECTION 3009

1 11. Department of workforce development.

2 12. Office of the commissioner of insurance.

3 **SECTION 3010.** 230.08 (2) (L) 6. of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:
4 230.08 (2) (L) 6. Bureau of criminal justice research.

5 **SECTION 3011.** 230.08 (2) (of) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 230.08 (2) (of) The ~~executive staff~~ director of the ~~sentencing commission bureau~~
7 of criminal justice research.

8 **SECTION 3012.** 230.08 (2) (pd) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 230.08 (2) (pd) The chairperson of the parole earned release review
10 commission.

11 **SECTION 3013.** 230.08 (2) (tv) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 230.08 (2) (tv) The director of the office of urban development in the
13 department of ~~health and family services~~ children and families, appointed under s.
14 48.48 (16m).

15 **SECTION 3014.** 230.08 (2) (yc) of the statutes is created to read:

16 230.08 (2) (yc) Two persons employed by the department of commerce engaged
17 in advertising, marketing, and promotional activities within the United States for
18 economic development of, and business recruitment to, this state.

19 **SECTION 3015.** 230.12 (3) (e) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

20 230.12 (3) (e) 1. The director, after receiving recommendations from the board
21 of regents, shall submit to the joint committee on employment relations a proposal
22 for adjusting compensation and employee benefits for employees under ss. 20.923
23 (4g), (5) and (6) (m) and 230.08 (2) (d) who are not included in a collective bargaining
24 unit under subch. V or VI of ch. 111 for which a representative is certified. The
25 proposal shall include the salary ranges and adjustments to the salary ranges for the

1 university senior executive salary groups 1 and 2 established under s. 20.923 (4g).
2 The proposal shall be based upon the competitive ability of the board of regents to
3 recruit and retain qualified faculty and academic staff, data collected as to rates of
4 pay for comparable work in other public services, universities and commercial and
5 industrial establishments, recommendations of the board of regents and any special
6 studies carried on as to the need for any changes in compensation and employee
7 benefits to cover each year of the biennium. The proposal shall also take proper
8 account of prevailing pay rates, costs and standards of living and the state's
9 employment policies. The proposal for such pay adjustments may contain
10 recommendations for across-the-board pay adjustments, merit or other
11 adjustments and employee benefit improvements. Paragraph (b) and sub. (1) (bf)
12 shall apply to the process for approval of all pay adjustments for such employees
13 under ss. 20.923 (4g), (5) and (6) (m) and 230.08 (2) (d). The proposal as approved
14 by the joint committee on employment relations and the governor shall be based
15 upon a percentage of the budgeted salary base for such employees under ss. 20.923
16 (4g), (5) and (6) (m) and 230.08 (2) (d). The amount included in the proposal for merit
17 and adjustments other than across-the-board pay adjustments is available for
18 discretionary use by the board of regents.

19 **SECTION 3016.** 230.13 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 230.13 (3) (a) The director and the administrator shall provide to the
21 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
22 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) information requested under s. 49.22 (2m) that
23 would otherwise be closed to the public under this section. Information provided
24 under this paragraph may only include an individual's name and address, an
25 individual's employer and financial information related to an individual.

SECTION 3017

1 **SECTION 3017.** 230.147 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 230.147 (1) Each appointing authority of an agency with more than 100
3 authorized permanent full-time equivalent positions shall prepare and implement
4 a plan of action to employ persons who, at the time determined under sub. (4), receive
5 aid under s. 49.19, or benefits under s. 49.147 (3) to (5), with the goal of making the
6 ratio of those persons occupying permanent positions in the agency to the total
7 number of persons occupying permanent positions in the agency equal to the ratio
8 of the average case load receiving aid under s. 49.19, or benefits under s. 49.147 (3)
9 to (5), in this state in the previous fiscal year to the average number of persons in the
10 state civilian labor force in the preceding fiscal year, as determined by the
11 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

12 **SECTION 3018.** 230.147 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 230.147 (2) Each appointing authority of an agency with 100 or fewer
14 authorized permanent full-time equivalent positions is encouraged to employ
15 persons who, at the time determined under sub. (4), receive aid under s. 49.19, or
16 benefits under s. 49.147 (3) to (5), to attempt to make the ratio of those persons
17 occupying permanent positions in the agency to the total number of persons
18 occupying permanent positions in the agency equal to the ratio of the average case
19 load receiving aid under s. 49.19, or benefits under s. 49.147 (3) to (5) in this state
20 in the previous fiscal year to the average number of persons in the state civilian labor
21 force in the preceding fiscal year, as determined by the department of ~~workforce~~
22 ~~development~~ children and families.

23 **SECTION 3019.** 230.35 (2d) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 230.35 (2d) (e) For employees who are included in a collective bargaining unit
25 for which a representative is recognized or certified under subch. V or VI of ch. 111,

1 this subsection shall apply unless otherwise provided in a collective bargaining
2 agreement.

3 **SECTION 3020.** 230.35 (3) (e) 6. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 230.35 (3) (e) 6. For employees who are included in a collective bargaining unit
5 for which a representative is recognized or certified under subch. V or VI of ch. 111,
6 this paragraph shall apply unless otherwise provided in a collective bargaining
7 agreement.

8 **SECTION 3021.** 230.88 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 230.88 (2) (b) No collective bargaining agreement supersedes the rights of an
10 employee under this subchapter. However, nothing in this subchapter affects any
11 right of an employee to pursue a grievance procedure under a collective bargaining
12 agreement under subch. V or VI of ch. 111, and if the division of equal rights
13 determines that a grievance arising under such a collective bargaining agreement
14 involves the same parties and matters as a complaint under s. 230.85, it shall order
15 the arbitrator's final award on the merits conclusive as to the rights of the parties
16 to the complaint, on those matters determined in the arbitration which were at issue
17 and upon which the determination necessarily depended.

18 **SECTION 3022.** 231.03 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 **231.03 Powers.** (intro.) The authority has all the powers necessary or
20 convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of this chapter.
21 In addition to all other powers granted by this chapter, subject to s. 231.035, the
22 authority may:

23 **SECTION 3023.** 231.035 of the statutes is created to read:

24 **231.035 Approval by secretary of health and family services.** Beginning
25 on the effective date of this section [revisor inserts date], the authority shall

SECTION 3023

1 inform the secretary of health and family services of any health facility or
2 participating health institution that seeks financial assistance under s. 231.03. The
3 authority may not provide any financial assistance to such a health facility or
4 participating health institution unless the secretary of health and family services
5 determines, under s. 146.76, that the health facility or participating health
6 institution demonstrates progress in improving medical information systems
7 technology.

8 **SECTION 3024.** 234.01 (4n) (a) 3m. e. of the statutes is amended to read:

9 234.01 (4n) (a) 3m. e. The facility is located in a targeted area, as determined
10 by the authority after considering the factors set out in s. ~~560.605 (2m) (a) to (h)~~
11 560.605 (2m) (c), 2005 stats., s. 560.605 (2m) (d), 2005 stats., s. 560.605 (2m) (e), 2005
12 stats., and s. 560.605 (2m) (a), (b), and (f) to (h).

13 **SECTION 3025.** 234.165 (2) (c) (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by 2005
14 Wisconsin Act 25, is amended to read:

15 234.165 (2) (c) (intro.) ~~Surplus~~ Except as provided in sub. (3), surplus may be
16 expended or encumbered only in accordance with the plan approved under par. (b),
17 except that the authority may transfer from one plan category to another:

18 **SECTION 3026.** 234.165 (2) (c) (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by 2007
19 Wisconsin Act (this act), is amended to read:

20 234.165 (2) (c) (intro.) ~~Except as provided in sub. (3), surplus~~ Surplus may be
21 expended or encumbered only in accordance with the plan approved under par. (b),
22 except that the authority may transfer from one plan category to another:

23 **SECTION 3027.** 234.165 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

24 234.165 (3) For the purpose of housing grants and loans under s. 560.9803 and
25 housing grants under s. 560.9805, in fiscal year 2007-08 the authority shall transfer

1 to the department of commerce \$2,000,000 of its actual surplus under this section
2 and in fiscal year 2008-09 the authority shall transfer to the department of
3 commerce \$2,000,000 of its actual surplus under this section.

4 **SECTION 3028.** 234.165 (3) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act
5 (this act), is repealed.

6 **SECTION 3029.** 236.335 of the statutes is amended to read:

7 **236.335 Prohibited subdividing; forfeit.** No lot or parcel in a recorded plat
8 may be divided, or used if so divided, for purposes of sale or building development if
9 the resulting lots or parcels do not conform to this chapter, to any applicable
10 ordinance of the approving authority or to the rules of the department of workforce
11 development commerce under s. 236.13. Any person making or causing such a
12 division to be made shall forfeit not less than \$100 nor more than \$500 to the
13 approving authority, or to the state if there is a violation of this chapter or the rules
14 of the department of ~~workforce development~~ commerce.

15 **SECTION 3030.** Chapter 238 of the statutes is created to read:

16 **CHAPTER 238**

17 **HEALTHY WISCONSIN AUTHORITY**

18 **238.01 Definitions.** In this chapter:

19 (1) "Authority" means the Healthy Wisconsin Authority.

20 (2) "Board" means the board of directors of the authority.

21 (3) "Health benefit purchasing cooperative" means a cooperative under s.
22 185.99.

23 (4) "Small group market" has the meaning given in s. 632.745 (26).

24 **238.05 Creation and organization of authority.** (1) There is created a
25 public body corporate and politic to be known as the "Healthy Wisconsin Authority."

1 The board of directors of the authority shall consist of the commissioner of insurance,
2 or his or her designee, as a nonvoting member, and the following 13 members, who
3 shall serve 4-year terms:

4 (a) One majority party senator appointed by the senate majority leader.

5 (b) One minority party senator appointed by the senate minority leader.

6 (c) One majority party representative to the assembly appointed by the speaker
7 of the assembly.

8 (d) One minority party representative to the assembly appointed by the
9 assembly minority leader.

10 (e) Nine nominees of the governor, appointed with the advice and consent of the
11 senate, consisting of all of the following:

12 1. One health care provider.

13 2. One representative of a Wisconsin health insurance company that offers
14 coverage in the small group market.

15 3. One representative of a Wisconsin small employer.

16 4. One representative of Wisconsin labor unions.

17 5. One representative of health benefit purchasing cooperatives.

18 6. Four other members who represent the public interest.

19 (2) Each member of the board shall hold office until a successor is appointed
20 and qualified unless the member vacates or is removed from his or her office. A
21 member who serves as a result of holding another office or position vacates his or her
22 office as a member when he or she vacates the other office or position. A member who
23 ceases to qualify for office vacates his or her office. A vacancy on the board shall be
24 filled in the same manner as the original appointment to the board for the remainder
25 of the unexpired term, if any.

1 (3) Annually, the governor shall appoint one member as chairperson, and the
2 members of the board may elect other officers as they consider appropriate.

3 (4) The board shall appoint an executive director. The executive director shall
4 not be a member of the board and shall serve at the pleasure of the board. The
5 authority may delegate by resolution to one or more of its members or its executive
6 director any powers and duties that it considers proper. The executive director shall
7 receive such compensation as may be determined by the board. The executive
8 director or other person designated by resolution of the board shall keep a record of
9 the proceedings of the authority and shall be custodian of all books, documents, and
10 papers filed with the authority, the minute book or journal of the authority, and its
11 official seal. The executive director or other person may cause copies to be made of
12 all minutes and other records and documents of the authority and may give
13 certificates under the official seal of the authority to the effect that such copies are
14 true copies, and all persons dealing with the authority may rely upon such
15 certificates.

16 (5) A majority of the members of the board constitutes a quorum for the purpose
17 of conducting its business and exercising its powers and for all other purposes,
18 notwithstanding the existence of any vacancies. Action may be taken by the board
19 upon a vote of a majority of the members present. Meetings of the members of the
20 board may be held anywhere within or without the state.

21 (6) A member of the board may not be compensated for his or her services but
22 shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance
23 of his or her duties, including travel expenses, subject to uniform travel schedule
24 amounts approved under s. 20.916 (8).

1 (7) No cause of action may arise against and no civil liability may be imposed
2 upon a member or executive director of the authority for any act or omission in the
3 performance of his or her powers and duties under this chapter, unless the person
4 asserting liability proves that the act or omission constitutes willful misconduct.

5 **238.10 Powers of authority.** (1) Except as restricted under sub. (2), the
6 authority shall have all the powers necessary or convenient to carry out the purposes
7 and provisions of this chapter. In addition to all other powers granted by this chapter,
8 the authority may:

9 (a) Adopt, amend, and repeal bylaws and policies and procedures for the
10 regulation of its affairs and the conduct of its business.

11 (b) Have a seal and alter the seal at pleasure.

12 (c) Maintain an office.

13 (d) Sue and be sued.

14 (e) Accept gifts, grants, loans, or other contributions from private or public
15 sources.

16 (f) Establish the authority's annual budget and monitor the fiscal management
17 of the authority.

18 (g) Execute contracts and other instruments, including contracts for any
19 professional services required for the authority.

20 (h) Employ any officers, agents, and employees that it may require and
21 determine their qualifications and compensation.

22 (i) Procure liability insurance.

23 (2) The authority may not issue bonds.

24 **238.15 Catastrophic health care reinsurance program.** (1) In addition
25 to all other duties under this chapter, the authority shall do all of the following:

1 (a) Study options and develop recommendations for implementing a
2 reinsurance program to provide reinsurance to groups or individuals, or both, in this
3 state for catastrophic claims under group or individual, or both, health insurance
4 policies.

5 (b) No later than September 15, 2008, submit to the secretary of administration
6 a report with its recommendations for implementing a reinsurance program
7 described in par. (a).

8 (c) Develop and administer a reinsurance program in accordance with any
9 legislation enacted that requires or authorizes the authority to do so.

10 (2) (a) In developing its recommendations for a reinsurance program under
11 sub. (1), the authority shall do all of the following:

- 12 1. Develop guidelines for defining high-cost claims and attachment points.
- 13 2. Set premiums to be paid for the reinsurance coverage, based on the number
14 of covered lives included in the reinsurance pool.
- 15 3. Set coinsurance rates for claims paid.
- 16 4. Design all other program features.

17 (b) The authority may do all of the following:

18 1. Consider the impact of, and make recommendations to the governor on,
19 allowing health benefit purchasing cooperatives to participate in a reinsurance
20 program implemental under this section.

21 2. Evaluate the challenges faced by American Indian tribes and bands in this
22 state and other sectors of the group health insurance market and make
23 recommendations to the governor on proposals to reduce health insurance premiums
24 for the tribes and bands and other sectors.

1 3. Explore other ways to lower health care costs and to increase access to and
2 improve the quality of health care, including considering options for comprehensive
3 health care reform.

4 (3) The authority may contract with a vendor to administer any reinsurance
5 program implemented under this section, including the performance of such
6 responsibilities as estimating reinsurance premiums, paying claims, customer
7 service, and day-to-day administration.

8 **238.20 Annual evaluations.** Annually, after implementation of any
9 reinsurance program under this section, the authority shall contract with an
10 independent entity to conduct an evaluation of the program and a financial audit of
11 the most recent fiscal year ending before the audit. The program evaluation shall
12 include a review of best practices that may impact appropriate use of health care and
13 disease management. The authority shall make any necessary adjustments or
14 improvements if, as a result of the evaluation or audit, problems or deficiencies are
15 determined to exist. After each evaluation and audit, the authority shall explore the
16 feasibility of expanding the program to cover more state residents. The authority
17 shall submit to the governor a report of the results of each evaluation and audit no
18 later than January 1 of the year beginning after the year in which the evaluation and
19 audit are conducted.

20 **SECTION 3031.** 250.041 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 250.041 (1m) If an individual who applies for or to renew a registration, license,
22 certification, approval, permit or certificate under sub. (1) does not have a social
23 security number, the individual, as a condition of obtaining the registration, license,
24 certification, approval, permit or certificate, shall submit a statement made or
25 subscribed under oath or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not

1 have a social security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the
2 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A registration, license,
3 certification, approval, permit or certificate issued or renewed in reliance upon a
4 false statement submitted under this subsection is invalid.

5 **SECTION 3032.** 250.041 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 250.041 (2) The department of health and family services may not disclose any
7 information received under sub. (1) to any person except to the department of
8 ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the purpose of making
9 certifications required under s. 49.857.

10 **SECTION 3033.** 250.041 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 250.041 (3) The department of health and family services shall deny an
12 application for the issuance or renewal of a registration, license, certification,
13 approval, permit or certificate specified in sub. (1) or may, under a memorandum of
14 understanding under s. 49.857 (2), suspend or restrict a registration, license,
15 certification, approval, permit or certificate specified in sub. (1) if the department of
16 ~~workforce development~~ children and families certifies under s. 49.857 that the
17 applicant for or holder of the registration, license, certification, approval, permit or
18 certificate is delinquent in the payment of court-ordered payments of child or family
19 support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related
20 to the support of a child or former spouse or fails to comply, after appropriate notice,
21 with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~
22 children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related
23 to paternity or child support proceedings.

24 **SECTION 3034.** 250.17 of the statutes is created to read:

1 **250.17 Translational research program.** (1) In this section, “translational
2 research” means the transfer of knowledge gained from basic research to new and
3 improved methods of preventing, diagnosing, or treating disease, as well as the
4 transfer of clinical insights into hypotheses that can be tested and validated in the
5 basic research laboratory.

6 (2) The Medical College of Wisconsin, Inc., shall use the moneys appropriated
7 under s. 20.250 (2) (b) for translational research projects. These moneys may not be
8 used to supplant funds available for translational research from other sources.

9 (3) Annually by January 1, the Medical College of Wisconsin, Inc., shall report
10 to the appropriate standing committees of the legislature under s. 13.172 (3) and to
11 the governor on the translational research projects it has conducted under sub. (2)
12 in the previous fiscal year.

13 **SECTION 3035.** 252.04 (11) of the statutes is repealed.

14 **SECTION 3036.** 252.12 (2) (c) 1. (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 252.12 (2) (c) 1. (intro.) From the appropriation under s. 20.435 (3) (5) (md), the
16 department shall award to applying nonprofit corporations or public agencies up to
17 \$75,000 in each fiscal year, on a competitive basis, as grants for services to prevent
18 HIV. Criteria for award of the grants shall include all of the following:

19 **SECTION 3037.** 252.16 (1) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 252.16 (1) (d) “Medicare” has the meaning given in s. 49.498 (1) (f) means
21 coverage under part A, part B, or part D of Title XVIII of the federal Social Security
22 Act, 42 USC 1395 to 1395hhh.

23 **SECTION 3038.** 252.16 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 252.16 (4) (a) Except as provided in pars. (b) and (d), if an individual satisfies
25 sub. (3), the department shall pay the full amount of each premium payment for the

1 individual's health insurance coverage under the group health plan or individual
2 health policy under sub. (3) (dm), on or after the date on which the individual
3 becomes eligible for a subsidy under sub. (3). Except as provided in pars. (b) and (d),
4 the department shall pay the full amount of each premium payment regardless of
5 whether the individual's health insurance coverage under sub. (3) (dm) includes
6 coverage of the individual's dependents. Except as provided in par. (b), the
7 department shall terminate the payments under this section when the individual's
8 health insurance coverage ceases or when the individual no longer satisfies sub. (3),
9 whichever occurs first. The department may not make payments under this section
10 for premiums for medicare, except for premiums for coverage for part D of Title XVIII
11 of the federal Social Security Act, 42 USC 1395 to 1395hhh.

12 **SECTION 3039.** 252.241 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 252.241 (1m) If an individual who applies for or to renew a license under sub.
14 (1) does not have a social security number, the individual, as a condition of obtaining
15 the license, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation
16 to the department that the applicant does not have a social security number. The
17 form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of workforce
18 development children and families. A license issued or renewed in reliance upon a
19 false statement submitted under this subsection is invalid.

20 **SECTION 3040.** 253.06 (title) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (title).

21 **SECTION 3041.** 253.06 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (1).

22 **SECTION 3042.** 253.06 (2) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (2) and amended
23 to read:

24 49.17 (2) USE OF FUNDS. From the appropriation under s. ~~20.435 (5)~~ 20.437 (2)
25 (em), the department shall supplement the provision of supplemental foods,

SECTION 3042

1 nutrition education, and other services, including nutritional counseling, to
2 low-income women, infants, and children who meet the eligibility criteria under the
3 federal special supplemental food program for women, infants, and children
4 authorized under 42 USC 1786. To the extent that funds are available under this
5 section and to the extent that funds are available under 42 USC 1786, the
6 department shall provide the supplemental food, nutrition education, and other
7 services authorized under this section and shall administer that provision in every
8 county. The department may enter into contracts for this purpose.

9 **SECTION 3043.** 253.06 (3) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (3).

10 **SECTION 3044.** 253.06 (3m) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (3m).

11 **SECTION 3045.** 253.06 (4) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (4).

12 **SECTION 3046.** 253.06 (5) (title) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (5) (title).

13 **SECTION 3047.** 253.06 (5) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (5) (a).

14 **SECTION 3048.** 253.06 (5) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (5) (b).

15 **SECTION 3049.** 253.06 (5) (c) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (5) (c).

16 **SECTION 3050.** 253.06 (5) (d) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (5) (d).

17 **SECTION 3051.** 253.06 (5) (e) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (5) (e) and
18 amended to read:

19 49.17 (5) (e) The suspension or termination of authorization of a vendor or
20 eligibility of a participant shall be effective beginning on the 15th day after receipt
21 of the notice of suspension or termination. All forfeitures, recoupments, and
22 enforcement assessments shall be paid to the department within 15 days after
23 receipt of notice of assessment or, if the forfeiture, recoupment, or enforcement
24 assessment is contested under sub. (6), within 10 days after receipt of the final
25 decision after exhaustion of administrative review, unless the final decision is

1 adverse to the department or unless the final decision is appealed and the decision
2 is stayed by court order under sub. (7). The department shall remit all forfeitures
3 paid to the secretary of administration for deposit in the school fund. The
4 department shall deposit all enforcement assessments in the appropriation under s.
5 ~~20.435 (1)~~ 20.437 (2) (gr).

6 **SECTION 3052.** 253.06 (5) (f) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (5) (f).

7 **SECTION 3053.** 253.06 (6) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (6).

8 **SECTION 3054.** 253.06 (7) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (7).

9 **SECTION 3055.** 253.06 (8) of the statutes is renumbered 49.17 (8).

10 **SECTION 3056.** 253.10 (3) (d) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

11 253.10 (3) (d) 1. Geographically indexed materials that are designed to inform
12 a woman about public and private agencies, including adoption agencies, and
13 services that are available to provide information on family planning, as defined in
14 s. 253.07 (1) (a), including natural family planning information, to provide
15 ultrasound imaging services, to assist her if she has received a diagnosis that her
16 unborn child has a disability or if her pregnancy is the result of sexual assault or
17 incest and to assist her through pregnancy, upon childbirth and while the child is
18 dependent. The materials shall include a comprehensive list of the agencies
19 available, a description of the services that they offer and a description of the manner
20 in which they may be contacted, including telephone numbers and addresses, or, at
21 the option of the department, the materials shall include a toll-free, 24-hour
22 telephone number that may be called to obtain an oral listing of available agencies
23 and services in the locality of the caller and a description of the services that the
24 agencies offer and the manner in which they may be contacted. The materials shall
25 provide information on the availability of governmentally funded programs that

SECTION 3056

1 serve pregnant women and children. Services identified for the woman shall include
2 medical assistance for pregnant women and children under s. 49.47 (4) (am) and
3 49.471, the availability of family or medical leave under s. 103.10, the Wisconsin
4 works program under ss. 49.141 to 49.161, child care services, child support laws and
5 programs and the credit for expenses for household and dependent care and services
6 necessary for gainful employment under section 21 of the internal revenue code. The
7 materials shall state that it is unlawful to perform an abortion for which consent has
8 been coerced, that any physician who performs or induces an abortion without
9 obtaining the woman's voluntary and informed consent is liable to her for damages
10 in a civil action and is subject to a civil penalty, that the father of a child is liable for
11 assistance in the support of the child, even in instances in which the father has
12 offered to pay for an abortion, and that adoptive parents may pay the costs of
13 prenatal care, childbirth and neonatal care. The materials shall include
14 information, for a woman whose pregnancy is the result of sexual assault or incest,
15 on legal protections available to the woman and her child if she wishes to oppose
16 establishment of paternity or to terminate the father's parental rights. The
17 materials shall state that fetal ultrasound imaging and auscultation of fetal heart
18 tone services are obtainable by pregnant women who wish to use them and shall
19 describe the services.

20 **SECTION 3057.** 253.115 of the statutes is repealed.

21 **SECTION 3058.** 253.12 (4) (d) of the statutes is repealed.

22 **SECTION 3059.** 253.15 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 **253.15 (2) INFORMATIONAL MATERIALS.** The board shall purchase or prepare or
24 arrange with a nonprofit organization to prepare printed and audiovisual materials
25 relating to shaken baby syndrome and impacted babies. The materials shall include

1 information regarding the identification and prevention of shaken baby syndrome
2 and impacted babies, the grave effects of shaking or throwing on an infant or young
3 child, appropriate ways to manage crying, fussing, or other causes that can lead a
4 person to shake or throw an infant or young child, and a discussion of ways to reduce
5 the risks that can lead a person to shake or throw an infant or young child. The
6 materials shall be prepared in English, Spanish, and other languages spoken by a
7 significant number of state residents, as determined by the board. The board shall
8 make those written and audiovisual materials available to all hospitals, maternity
9 homes, and nurse-midwives licensed under s. 441.15 that are required to provide or
10 make available materials to parents under sub. (3) (a) 1., to the department and to
11 all county departments and nonprofit organizations that are required to provide the
12 materials to day care providers under sub. (4), and to all school boards and nonprofit
13 organizations that are permitted to provide the materials to pupils in one of grades
14 5 to 8 and in one of grades 10 to 12 under sub. (5). The board shall also make those
15 written materials available to all county departments and Indian tribes that are
16 providing home visitation services under s. 46.515 ~~48.983~~ (4) (b) 1. or 2. and to all
17 providers of prenatal, postpartum, and young child care coordination services under
18 s. 49.45 (44). The board may make available the materials required under this
19 subsection to be made available by making those materials available at no charge on
20 the board's Internet site.

21 **SECTION 3060.** 253.15 (2) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act ...
22 (this act), is amended to read:

23 **253.15 (2) INFORMATIONAL MATERIALS.** The board shall purchase or prepare or
24 arrange with a nonprofit organization to prepare printed and audiovisual materials
25 relating to shaken baby syndrome and impacted babies. The materials shall include

SECTION 3060

1 information regarding the identification and prevention of shaken baby syndrome
2 and impacted babies, the grave effects of shaking or throwing on an infant or young
3 child, appropriate ways to manage crying, fussing, or other causes that can lead a
4 person to shake or throw an infant or young child, and a discussion of ways to reduce
5 the risks that can lead a person to shake or throw an infant or young child. The
6 materials shall be prepared in English, Spanish, and other languages spoken by a
7 significant number of state residents, as determined by the board. The board shall
8 make those written and audiovisual materials available to all hospitals, maternity
9 homes, and nurse-midwives licensed under s. 441.15 that are required to provide or
10 make available materials to parents under sub. (3) (a) 1., to the department and to
11 all county departments and nonprofit organizations that are required to provide the
12 materials to day care providers under sub. (4), and to all school boards and nonprofit
13 organizations that are permitted to provide the materials to pupils in one of grades
14 5 to 8 and in one of grades 10 to 12 under sub. (5). The board shall also make those
15 written materials available to all county departments and Indian tribes that are
16 providing home visitation services under s. 48.983 (4) (b) 1. or 2., to all organizations
17 that are providing home visitation services under s. 48.984 (3) (a), and to all
18 providers of prenatal, postpartum, and young child care coordination services under
19 s. 49.45 (44). The board may make available the materials required under this
20 subsection to be made available by making those materials available at no charge on
21 the board's Internet site.

22 **SECTION 3061.** 253.15 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 253.15 (6) INFORMATION TO HOME VISITATION OR CARE COORDINATION SERVICES
24 RECIPIENTS. A county department or Indian tribe that is providing home visitation
25 services under s. ~~46.515~~ 48.983 (4) (b) 1. or 2. and a provider of prenatal, postpartum,

1 and young child care coordination services under s. 49.45 (44) shall provide to a
2 recipient of those services, without cost, a copy of the written materials purchased
3 or prepared under sub. (2) and an oral explanation of those materials.

4 **SECTION 3062.** 253.15 (6) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act
5 (this act), is amended to read:

6 **253.15 (6) INFORMATION TO HOME VISITATION OR CARE COORDINATION SERVICES**
7 **RECIPIENTS.** A county department or Indian tribe that is providing home visitation
8 services under s. 48.983 (4) (b) 1. or 2., an organization that is providing home
9 visitation services under s. 48.984 (3) (a), and a provider of prenatal, postpartum, and
10 young child care coordination services under s. 49.45 (44) shall provide to a recipient
11 of those services, without cost, a copy of the written materials purchased or prepared
12 under sub. (2) and an oral explanation of those materials.

13 **SECTION 3063.** 253.15 (7) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 **253.15 (7) (e)** A county department or Indian tribe that is providing home
15 visitation services under s. ~~46.515~~ 48.983 (4) (b) 1. or 2. and a provider of prenatal,
16 postpartum, and young child care coordination services under s. 49.45 (44) is
17 immune from liability for any damages resulting from any good faith act or omission
18 in providing or failing to provide the written materials and oral explanation specified
19 in sub. (6).

20 **SECTION 3064.** 253.15 (7) (e) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act
21 (this act), is amended to read:

22 **253.15 (7) (e)** A county department or Indian tribe that is providing home
23 visitation services under s. 48.983 (4) (b) 1. or 2., an organization that is providing
24 home visitation services under s. 48.984 (3) (a), and a provider of prenatal,
25 postpartum, and young child care coordination services under s. 49.45 (44) is are

SECTION 3064

1 immune from liability for any damages resulting from any good faith act or omission
2 in providing or failing to provide the written materials and oral explanation specified
3 in sub. (6).

4 **SECTION 3065.** 253.15 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 253.15 (8) IDENTIFICATION OF SHAKEN OR IMPACTED BABIES. The department of
6 health and family services shall identify all infants and young children who have
7 shaken baby syndrome or who are impacted babies and all infants and young
8 children who have died as a result of being shaken or thrown by using the statewide
9 automated child welfare information system established under s. ~~46.03 (7) (g)~~ s.
10 ~~46.03 (7g)~~ 48.47 (7g) and child fatality information compiled by the department of
11 justice. For each infant or young child so identified, the department of health and
12 family services shall document the age, sex, and other characteristics of the infant
13 or young child that are relevant to the prevention of shaken baby syndrome and
14 impacted babies and, if known, the age, sex, employment status, and residence of the
15 person who shook or threw the infant or young child, the relationship of that person
16 to the infant or young child, and any other characteristics of that person that are
17 relevant to the prevention of shaken baby syndrome and impacted babies.

18 **SECTION 3066.** 254.115 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 254.115 (1m) If an individual who applies for or to renew a certification,
20 certification card or permit under sub. (1) does not have a social security number, the
21 individual, as a condition of obtaining the certification, certification card or permit,
22 shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the
23 department that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of
24 the statement shall be prescribed by the department of workforce development